HILTON UNION FIRE BOARD
AGENDA
JUNE 10, 2024
7:00 PM

1. Accept Agenda as presented

2. Declaration of pecuniary interest
3. Approve Minutes of Special Meeting: May 6, 2024
4. Update on fire calls since last meeting/volunteer numbers

5. Delegations: Brad Neabel, SOLGEN
a) Discussion regarding mandatory certification

6. Administration:
a) 2024 Proposed Budget
b) HUFB —By-Law Amendment as per the below Resolutions:

Resolution 2024 - 116
Moved: Mike Trainor
Seconded: Dave Leask

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HILTON does agree to the
Hilton Union Fire Board’s recommendation to amend By-Law 1024-11 to add, “Board
recommendations/decisions must be presented to respective Councils for approval. Fire
Board meetings are to be open to the public and agendas and minutes will be posted on
respective websites” to Section 2. CARRIED*

Resolution No. 2024-75
Moved: Brian Delvecchio
Seconded: Sarah Brown

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Village of Hilton Beach Council supports the Hilton Union Fire
Board that the joint board be composed of 3 elected members and one alternate from
both Hilton Township and the Village of Hilton Beach and the board
recommendations/decisions must be presented to respective Council for

approval. *CARRIED*

c) Volunteer Fire Chief

Move to Closed Meeting
The Hilton Union Fire Board will enter into closed session in accordance with the provisions of
the Municipal Act, Section 239 (2) (d) labour relations or employee negotiations.

7. Correspondence:
a) Township of St. Joseph Island Fire Chief
b) Birthday Party Request

8. Adjourn



HILTON UNION FIRE BOARD
Special Meeting
MINUTES
May 6, 2024
7:00 p.m.
Present: Brian Delvecchio

Mike Garside

Robert Hope (Deputy Chief)

Janet Gordanier (via phone)

Rodney Wood

Sarah Brown (via phone)

Acting Secretary-Treasurer: Sara Dinsdale
Call to order at 7:00 p.m.

There were no disclosures of pecuniary interest.

Resolution #F2024-18
Moved: Mike Garside Seconded: Robert Hope

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF THE HILTON UNION FIRE DEPARTMENT accepts the agenda of
May 6, 2024 as presented. *CARRIED*

Resolution #F2024-19
Moved: Janet Gordanier Seconded: Rodney Wood

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF THE HILTON UNION FIRE DEPARTMENT approve the minutes of the
Special Fire Board Meeting held on April 15, 2024 as presented. *CARRIED*

Mr. Paul Milosevich was welcomed and a discussion regarding training took place. Mike Garside explained the training
information that he acquired when researching. All volunteer fire fighters must have Fire Fighters level 1 & 2 by 2026. Paul
offered his knowledge regarding fire training, schooling, and certification. Paul suggested that the trainer in SSM be
contacted to request training and to do mock tests. It was also discussed that the new Regional Advisor be contacted to
request they join the next meeting. It was decided that the fire department has three options: 1) Do fire training through a
private enterprise, 2) Continue the way it’s currently being done by working through the books then challenge the exam, or
3) Do remote training through SSM then challenge the exam. A fire fighter has up to three tries to pass the exam. If they fail
on the third attempt, they would need the Fire Chief to sign off on them.

A discussion regarding the Volunteer Fire Chief advertisement that the Acting Secretary-Treasurer created after the previous
meeting was discussed. Recommendations to change the posting to focus more on the administration side of the opportunity
were given.

Resolution #F2024-20
Moved: Janet Gordanier Seconded: Sarah Brown

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF THE HILTON UNION FIRE DEPARTMENT does recommend to respective
Councils to agree to post the Fire Chief Job advertisement after recommended modifications agreed to by board.
*CARRIED*

A letter written by Councillor Sarah Brown, from the Village of Hilton was discussed. The letter is addressed to MPP
Michael Mantha and MP Carol Hughes, regarding concerns of the management of Rural fire safety being that small
communities fall under the same guidelines as large municipalities. The letter will be signed by both Reeve, Rodney Wood of
the Township of Hilton and Mayor Robert Hope of the Village of Hilton before sent.

Resolution #F2024-21
Moved: Mike Garside Seconded: Rodney Wood

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF THE HILTON UNION FIRE DEPARTMENT do adjourn at 9:18 p.m. and
agree to meet again at the Hilton Township Municipal Office on June 10, 2024, or at the call of the Chair or by petition from
majority of the members of the Board. *CARRIED*

Chairperson: Brian Delvecchio Acting Secretary/Treasurer Sara Dinsdale



HILTON UNION FIRE DEPARTMENT
2024 BUDGET (including $10k to Reserve Fund)

[REVENUE 2022
ACTUAL

[FOTAL ExPERSES

2023

BUDGET

Account #

472110  Township of Hilton

442101  Village of Hilton Beach

496200 Interest on Term Deposit 1,160.00
Pumper Truck Renlal (water) 470.00 St.Joseph

472100 Donation (Lions) 0.00
Alloc from Fire Working Capital Reserves 0.00
Alloc from Fire Equipment/Building Reserve Fd 0.00
[TDTAL REVENUE |
|EXPENSES |
Operating:

521100/260 Chief & Deputy Wages/EHT 4,258.26 4,275.00
521110  FireFighters’ Honorarium 4,500.00 4,500.00
521230 WSIB 2,349 60 re surplus refund 3,500.00
521330 Miscellaneous 0.00 50000
521400 Truck Repairs and Maintenance 639.05 2,000.00
521410 Building Maintenance 42.65 200.00
521420 Compressor Maintenance 1,152 88 1,000.00
521438  Prevention -120.00 500 00
521450 Equipment: Purchases/Repairs 1,997.53 radios 2,700.00
521460  Truck Fuel 409.75 500.00
521470 Tumnout Gear 221.83 2,200.00
521475 SCBAs 0.00 0.00
521480  Training - Seminars 0.00 0.00
521490 Mileage 0.00 0.00
521512  Audit Fees 1,061.60 1,100.00
521570 Insurance 7.884.40 12,800.00
521590  Mutual Aid 0.00 0.00
521600 Hydrant Maintenance 1,578.48 1,600.00
521610  Inspections (re equipment testing) 457 92 pumper test only 2,000.00
521680 Telephone 0.00 0.00
521682 Communication 2,362.08 2,300.00
521690 Power/Propane 1,540.75 2,300.00

SUB TOTAL 30,336.78

Capital:

Turn Out Gear Yr 2024 ?? 000 0.00
0.00 0.00

SUB TOTAL 0.00

5,200.00 $155k @ 4%
300.00 Hilton Twp-Rds
0.00
0.00
0.00

60,175.00]

4,246.37
4,500.01
4,439.00
65.04
1,811.83
7472
1,000.00
0.00
1,609.81
814.50
2,244.82
0.00
0.00
0.00
1,116.05
13,328.28
0,00
1,578.48
scha+pumper testing 473.18
0.00
2,408.84

2023
ACTUAL

300.00
3,075.50
0.00
0.00

63,353.18

estimate-no invoice yet

no scba testing

estimate-no invoice yet

re firehall heater 2 months 2.440.02

43,975.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

43,975.00]

42,150.95

3,000
4,500
3,500
75
2,000
500
1,200
500
4,100

1,200
16,641.00
0

1,600
2,000

0
2,408.84
2,500

0
0

Prepared. May 8 2024

2024 2024
BUDGET ACTUAL

6,000.00
300.00 0.00
266.06 ratepayer 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

Jocelyn YrEnd

air tanks hghts ECT

15,641.36
Village YrEnd
scba+pumper lesting
46,224.84 15,641.36
0
I——
0 0
(e [Tsezg]vo



HILTON UNION FIRE DEPARTMENT

2024 BUDGET
2022 2023 2023 2024 2024
Account # ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
[TRANSFERS: RESERVES & RESERVEFUNDS | ] 260
Allocate to/(from) Fire Working Capital (surplusfideficit]) 6,293.22 0.00 4,899.55 inc/ $3k from Lions 0.00 0.00
Allocate Interest on TD and GIC to Fire Res Fd 1,160.00 6,200.00 6,305.28 6,000.00 6,000,00
Allocate to Reserve Fund for Equip/Bldg 10,000.00
17,453.22 16,200.00 21,204.83 16,000.00 16,000.00
[TOTALBUDGET ] | §0.175.00]
Fire v?orklng Capital Balance 14,380.17 19,279.72 19,279.72 0.00
Fire Equipment Reserve Fund Balance 153,702.34 170,007.62 185,995.62 15,988.00
Fire Building Reserve Fund Balance 15,532.33 15,632.33 15,532.33 0.00
Pumper: 91,178.99 Pumper: 107,484.27 Pumper: 123,484.27 Pumper: 143,484.27
Tanker: 38,523.35 Tanker: 38,523.35 Tanker: 38,523.35 Tanker: 38,523.35
Bunker Gear: 13,000.00 Bunker Gear: 13,000.00 Bunker Gear: 13,000.00 Bunker Gear: 13,000.00
Rapid Attack: 11,000.00 Rapid Attack: 11,000.00 Rapid Attack: 11,000.00 Rapid Attack: 11,000.00
153,702.34 170,007.62 186,007.62 206,007.62
Building: 15,532.33 Building: 15,532.33 Building: 15,532.33 Building: 15,532.33
Total ResFunds 169,234.67 Total ResFunds 185,539.95 Total ResFunds 201,539.95 Total ResFunds  221,539.95

Page 2

resume 20k this year?



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HILTON
BY-LAW NO._1420-24

WHEREAS the Corporation of the Township of Hilton has enacted by-law no. 1024-11
being a by-law to authorize an agreement for the joint management and operation of a Fire
Department.; and WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Hilton deems it desirous and
expedient to amend said by-law in order to clarify decision making power and meeting
procedures;

WHEREAS Section 9 of the Municipal Act, S.0. 2001, c. 25, as amended,
provides that a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person
for the purpose of exercising its authority under the Act;

AND WHEREAS Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that the powers
of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly so as to confer broad authority on municipalities to
(a) enable municipalities to govern their affairs as they consider appropriate and, (b) enhance
their ability to respond to municipal issues;

AND WHEREAS the Fire Protection and Prevention Act allows for entering into
agreement with one or more municipalities to provide for the joint management and operation of
fire departments and for the establishment of joint boards of management thereof;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Hilton
deems it necessary and expedient to enter into such an agreement with the Incorporated Village
of Hilton Beach;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Hilton
hereby enacts as follows:

1. That an agreement be entered into between the Corporation of the Township of Hilton and the
Incorporated Village of Hilton Beach with respect to fire department management and operation
and the establishment of a joint board of management thereof in accordance with the agreement

attached hereto.

2. That the Reeve and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute all documents pertaining to the
said agreement.

3. This by-law rescinds By-law 1024-11 passed August 3, 2011.

Read a first and second time this 10" day of Wednesday, July 10, 2024

Read a third and final time and passed this 10™ day of Wednesday, July 10, 2024.

ACTING REEVE — Mike Garside

ACTING CLERK — Sara Dinsdale



AGREEMENT

FOR THE JOINT MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION
OF THE HILTON UNION FIRE DEPARTMENT

This agreement made this 10th day of July, 2024, between
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HILTON
-and-
THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF HILTON BEACH

hereinafter called the "parties".

WHEREAS By-laws have been duly enacted by the corporate partics hereto
respectively, pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Act, to authorize an agreement between
the said parties for the establishment of a fire department joint board of management,

AND WHEREAS Part 2 (4) of the Fire Protection and Prevention Act provides
for two or more municipalities to establish a fire department for the purpose of providing fire
protection services in those municipalities,

AND WHEREAS the parties hereto have passed respective by-laws for entering
into this joint operating Agreement.

AND WHEREAS the parties hereto have agreed to jointly manage and operate a
fire department known as the "Hilton Union Fire Department”, hereinafter called the
"department" for the purpose of providing fire protection services in the areas defined in this
Agreement.

AND WITNESSETH this Agreement that in consideration of the covenants and
terms contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. In this Agreement:
“Department” means The Hilton Union Fire Department,

“Deputy Fire Chief” means the person(s) appointed to act in the place of the fire
chief in the fire chief’s absence, or in the case of a vacancy in the position of fire chief,

"Designate" means the person who, in the absence of the fire chief, is assigned to
be in charge of the particular activity of the fire department and who has the same powers
and authority as the fire chief;

“Fire Response Area” means the areas of the participating municipalities, as described in
Appendix “A”, attached to and forming part of this Agreement,

“Fire Chief” means a fire chief appointed by the participating municipalities under
subsection 6 (1), (2), or (4) of the Fire Protection and Prevention Act,

“Fire Department” means a group of firefighters authorized to provide fire protection
services by a municipality, and/or a group of municipalities,

“Fire Protection” means a range of programs designed to protect the lives and property of
the inhabitants of the fire department response area from the adverse effect of fires or
exposure to dangerous conditions created by man or nature and includes fire suppression,
fire prevention, fire safety education, communication, training of persons involved in the
delivery of fire protection services, rescue and the delivery of all those services.



Agreement — Page 2

2. A joint board of management shall be established and shall be composed of three (3) elected
members, plus one (1) alternate, from the Council of the Township of Hilton and three (3)
elected members, plus one (1) alternate, from the Council of the Village of Hilton Beach and is
to be known as the "Hilton Union Fire Board". The fire board shall be appointed for a term to
run concurrent with the terms of the appointing Councils. Each Council shall appoint their
representatives in December of an election year as designated by the Municipal Elections Act,
appointments to be effective immediately. Any vacancy occurring on the fire board shall be
filled within thirty (30) days of same occurring by the council of the municipality which had
appointed the member wherein the vacancy occurred.

3. Board Recommendations/decisions must be presented to respective councils for approval.

4. Fire Board meetings are to be open to the public and agendas and minutes will be posted on
respective websites.

5. The fire board shall appoint a chairperson from amongst its members at the first meeting of
the fire board for its term.

6. The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the fire board and be charged with the general
administration of the business and affairs of the fire board.

7. (a) The fire board shall appoint a secretary/treasurer at the first meeting of the fire board in
each term. The treasurer of the fire board shall be the Clerk-Treasurer of one of the municipal-
ities as agreed to by the parties.

(b) The audit for the fire board shall be included in the audit of the municipality of which the
Clerk-Treasurer has been appointed treasurer of the fire board. The auditor shall submit copies of
the annual statements to the fire board and to each of the parties to this Agreement.

(c) The secretary/treasurer shall give, or cause to be given, all notices required to members of
the fire board and enter, or cause to be entered, in books kept for that purpose minutes of all
proceedings at such meetings and be the custodian of such books, papers, records and documents
belonging to the fire board, and perform such other duties as may from time to time be
prescribed by the fire board.

(d) The secretary/treasurer shall keep full and accurate records of account in which shall be
recorded all receipts and disbursements of the department and, under the direction of the fire
board, shall deposit all monies with respect to the operation of the department in a bank account
to the credit of the fire board, and shall render to the fire board at the meetings thereof, or
whenever required, an account of all transactions and of the financial position of the department.

The secretary/treasurer shall pay only such items as are authorized by the fire board in
accordance with its budget.

8. (a) The fire board shall hold four regularly scheduled meetings annually, and at such other
times at the call of the chairperson or on petition of a majority of the members of the fire board.

(b) The fire board shall ensure the attendance of the fire chief of the department and/or
designate at each regular and special fire board meeting.

9. The fire board shall ensure that all meetings are convened and continued only when each
party to the agreement is represented. A quorum of the board shall consist of a minimum of four
members of the board. The date and times of regular meeting shall be set by the fire board.

10. (a) All fire board meetings shall have business conducted by written motion, duly moved,
seconded and carried by a majority vote.

(b) Copies of all minutes of regular and special meeting of the fire board are to be promptly
submitted, after their approval, to the councils of each party to this Agreement.

(c) Financial statements, after consideration by the fire board, are to be forwarded to the
councils of each party to this agreement.



Agreement — Page 3

11. (a) By the 30th of May in each year the fire board shall submit in writing to each of the
parties hereto, a draft budget for the operation of the department for that year together with an
apportionment of the costs to each of the parties herein using the formula of fifty percent (50%)
for the Township of Hilton and fifty percent (50%) for the Village of Hilton Beach.

Each party hereto shall approve such draft budget, or an amendment thereto, as agreed to by the
other party, on or before the 30th of June of each year. Each party hereto shall pay to the
treasurer in semi-annual instalments on the 30" day of June and the 31 day of December in each
year the amount of their said apportionment of costs. Interest will begin to accrue from the day
following the due dates at the rate of 1.25% per month.

(b) Each annual draft budget submitted to the councils shall include an appropriate provision
for a reserve fund for the replacement and repair of equipment. Such contributions to the reserve
fund shall be placed in a separate deposit account in the care and custody of the
secretary/treasurer. The secretary/treasurer shall submit a report to the fire board on the position
of the reserve fund in each year, prior to the budget meeting. No unbudgeted amounts shall be
paid out of, or charged against the reserve fund following the date when any party has given
notice of intent to withdraw from this Agreement.

12. The parties hereto agree that for the purposes of the financial terms and commitment to this
agreement all capital and operating costs shall be incurred as per the formula in Section 9 of this
Agreement.

13. The fire board shall be responsible for the preparation of draft by-laws, the formulating of
policies, for and relating to the administration of the department and the fire board.

14. The fire board shall provide adequate facilities and equipment for the operation of the
department.

15. The fire board shall be responsible for providing fire protection to areas within the boundary
as per schedule "A" attached hereto and forming part of this agreement.

16. The department shall endeavour to respond as soon as possible to all emergency calls with
the defined area as per schedule "A" with such apparatus and staff as per policy approved by the
fire board.

17. The fire chief of the department is hereby authorized to purchase necessary parts and/or
supplies and have the necessary repairs conducted to keep the apparatus and equipment in proper
operating condition to a maximum of the annual budget.

18. Both parties to this Agreement shall give such authority as may be necessary to the members
of the department in all matters pertaining to fire protection.

19. The fire board will arrange, in consultation with the councils of the parties hereto, for the
issuance of policies of insurance to protect assets in the care, custody and control of the fire
board from physical loss or damage and for protecting the fire board, the parties hereto and
members of the department against legal liability resulting from the activities of the fire board
and the operations of the department and to ensure that all policies of insurance provide that both
parties to this Agreement be endorsed as additional named insureds as their interest may appear.

20.(a) This Agreement shall remain in effect until a new agreement is made, notwithstanding,
the terms of this agreement may be amended from time to time.

(b) Should one of the parties wish to propose an amendment to this Agreement written notice
of such shall be given to both parties and the fire board at least thirty (30) days prior to the next
regularly scheduled meeting of the fire board.

21. So often as there may be any dispute between the parties to this Agreement with respect to
any matter contained in this Agreement, including but not limited to the interpretation of this
Agreement, the same shall be submitted to arbitration under the provisions of the Municipal
Arbitrations Act, R.S.0. 1990 c. M.48, and the decision rendered in respect of such proceedings
shall be final and binding upon the parties to this Agreement. If for any reason the said
arbitration cannot be conducted pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Arbitrations Act,
then the parties hereto shall agree to the selection of a single arbitrator and, in the absence of



Agreement — Page 4

such agreement, such arbitrator shall be appointed by a Judge of the Supreme Court of Ontario
pursuant to the provisions of the Arbitrations Act, S.0. 1991 c. 17, or pursuant to any successor
legislation.

22. In the event that either party to this Agreement wishes to cease participating in the fire board
they may do so provided that:

(a) One (1) year's written notice be given to the other party. Any written notice given, as
aforesaid shall terminate this Agreement as of the 31st December of the following year in which
notice is given.

(b) The terminating party's share, based on the formula in Section 9 of this Agreement, will be
first offered to the remaining party at a price determined by an independent appraisal. The
funding of such purchase will be extended over a period to be determined at the time by both
parties, subject to O.M.B. approval.

(c) If the department is completely dissolved, the assets are to be split based on the formula
contained in Section 9 of this Agreement including the assessed value of the fire station located
on Part Lot 1, Concession 17, Hilton Township, but not including the land, unless otherwise
agreed upon.

23. It is agreed that, with respect to matters not dealt with in this Agreement, the fire board may
formulate policies for and relating to the administration and operation of the department unless
otherwise prohibited by any applicable statute or regulation passed thereunder.

24. The parties hereto shall execute such further assurances as may be reasonably required to
carry out the terms thereof.

25. Upon the execution of this Agreement any existing agreement between the parties, as
amended, with respect to fire protection shall forthwith become null and void.

26. In the event that any covenant, provision or term of this Agreement should at any time be
held by any competent tribunal to be void or unenforceable, then the Agreement shall not fail but
the covenant, provision or term shall be deemed to be severable from the remainder of this
Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect mutatis mutandis.

27. In witness whereof the parties have hereunto affixed the signatures of their duly authorized
officers together with their corporate seals.

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF HILTON

ACTING REEVE — Mike Garside

ACTING CLERK — Sara Dinsdale

THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF HILTON BEACH

MAYOR — Robert Hope

CLERK — Myra Eddy



SCHEDULE “A” to By-Law No. 1024-11

“Fire Response Area” that area encompassed by the municipal boundaries of the Village of
Hilton Beach and the Township of Hilton.



Township of St. Joseph New
Fire Chief

Posted: May 28, 2024

Township of St. Joseph Welcomes New Fire Chief

RICHARDS LANDING — The Township of St. Joseph is pleased to welcome Duncan Rydall as the new Chief of the
Township of St. Joseph Fire & Rescue, effective June 3, 2024,

On behalf of the residents of the Township of St. Joseph and Fire & Rescue volunteers, Council and Staff want to thank
outgoing Chief Fraser Adams for his extraordinary dedication serving as volunteer Chief for the past thirteen years.
Fraser has led the department through significant modernization and upgrades to our fire hall, emergency vehicle fleet
and equipment. In addition, his leadership has attracted new volunteers, rejuvenated training efforts, and resulted in
a closer working relationship with neighbouring municipalities and partners across our district. We are grateful that
Fraser will continue to serve with the Township of St. Joseph Fire & Rescue and will assist in Duncan’s transition into
his new role.

Due to provincial legislative requirements governing the fire services, as well as reduced training opportunities
through the provincially funded Ontario Fire Marshal’s Office over the last number of years, the administrative
burden for volunteer fire departments has significantly increased. The time needed to ensure training requirements,
legislated reporting, liability, and organizational operations has made it increasingly difficult for a volunteer-only
Fire Chief to meet these obligations.

Following many months considering various options, Township Council and senior staff, in consultation with the current
Chief and volunteers, determined that the most effective way forward would be to create a full-time position combining
the responsibilities of Fire Chief, protective services such as emergency management, by-law enforcement, building
department administration and workplace health and safety, as well as building maintenance responsibilities.

We are pleased that Duncan Rydall has accepted the position and brings the skills and experience to fulfill these varied
duties. Duncan grew up in Laird Township and is currently a resident of the Township of St. Joseph. He brings a wide
variety of skills, organizational and training experience and has an impressive history of both volunteerism and full-
time recognition. Duncan has been the Chief Fire Prevention Officer for the Town of The Blue Mountains for the past
14 years and has also served as Deputy Chief (acting) for a portion of that time. Overall, he brings over 25 years of
volunteer and professional experience in the fire service.




-

i -._:.;.zf: i
TN e

Clerks Report: FB2024-06-10/01 Meeting Date: June 5, 2024
Subject: Birthday Party Request Hilton Union Fire Board Regular Meeting

Prepared by: Sara Dinsdale

The Hilton Union Fire Department received a request to have the Fire Truck make an
appearance at a 5 year old’s birthday party at the Community Centre on June 22. The request
included to possibly teach the kids (Jr.K) about fire safety and maybe show them some
equipment.

Mike Garside has volunteered his time to this! Thank you, Mike!
If anyone else would like to volunteer their time to this event, please let me know.

| am currently looking into some “fun” fire safety merch to bring to the event.



